A. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER 

Chad Langford hereby petitions this Honorable ·Court for 

discretionary review of the Court of Appeals decision which in a 2-1 split 

affirmed the trial court's ruling on a child support deviation. 

B. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION 

Chad Langford seeks review of Langford v. Langford; 2014 WL 

5307956 (hereinafter 'Langford'), a decision by Division III of the Court 

of Appeals, issued on October 16, 2014. Chad Langford timely filed a 

motion for reconsideration which was denied on November 20, 2014. 

Pursuant to RAP 13.4, this petition is timely. 

C. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

1- Are both parents the support obligor and support obligee in 

an equally shared residential custody arrangement? 

2. May the Superior Court place the entire child support 

obligation on one parent when both parents share residential placement? 

3. May the court designate a parent as 'obligor' in a shared 

custody situation simply because that parent has a higher income? 

4. Does the LegislatUre's intention 'to equitably apportion 

'child support' permit a judge to use his/her discretion in placing,the entire 

.support obligation on one parent in an equally shared custody situation? 

D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Chad Langford and Shannon Langford were married in 2000. CP 

I 
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194. The parties have two (2) children together, ages 6 and 7 a~ the time 

of trial. CP 76. The dissolution action was filed in May 2012. CP 191-97. 

Custody of the children was shared equally during the pendenc~ of the 

action. CP 180-88. 

Trial occurred in May, 2013 and the focus of trial was the 

distribution of assets and liabilities, support, and some mino~ parenting 

· plan issues. Prior to trial, the parties agreed to equal custody 10f the two 

(2) children by way of alternating each week just as they had done since 

separation. 

It was determined that Shannon Langford's monthly net income 

·was $3,429.46 and Chad Langford's monthly net income was $6,998.32. 

CP 48-52, TP 24. Accordingly, Shannon Langford's gross child support 

obligation was $710.64 and 9had Langford's gross child support 

obligation totaled $1,449.36. CP 49. Given that the children spent the 

exact same amount of time residing in the home of each parent, Chad 

· Langford proposed a residential deviation pursuant to RCW 

. 26.19.075(l)(d) that provided a credit in the amount of $1,013.00 resulting 

:in a transfer payment of $472.89. CP 149-154. Chad Langford contended 

that a deviation in the form of a credit or offset was appropriate to account 

for Shannon Langford's child support obligation. The trial cot:nt denied 

. . Chad Langford's request and ordered him to pay the entire gross child 

support obligation of $1,450.77. 

2 
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The trial court addressed the request for a deviation in a 

perfunctory manner during its oral ruling, stating only that the court 

considered the testimony and the best interests of the kids in denying the 

requested deviation. RP 24-25. In fact, with regard to the court's denial 

of the deviation, the court stated only the following: 

"And I considered the testimony, and I considered what 
would be in the best interest of the kids, and I thought a! lot 
about this particular issue. I felt that was important, 
keeping in mind the statute and keeping in mind the 
testimony that was provided to this court. And so I'm IIlot 
going to grant the residential credit in this case. I do !not 
believe that it's appropriate, and I'm not going to grant 
that" 

RP 24-25. 

Shannon Langford prepared the Findings of Fact/Con~lusions of 

Law. The trial court entered Findings of Fact which provide only the 

· following with regard to the requested deviation: 

"The court has heard extensive argument regarding the 
application of a residential credit for the father for 
calculating his monthly support obligation. The court lias 
found that no residential credit shall be granted to the 
father." CP 78. 

:Chad Langford appealed. As a result, Division III issued a 2~1 opinion 

:afft.nning the trial court and finding no abuse of discretion relative to the 

,denial of Chad Langford's requested deviation. The majority readily 

'recognized that the trial court's Findings of Fact were "abbreviated" and 

'"unnecessarily complicates review". Langford, at 5. The Court went on to 

3 
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''urge diligence in this area" as some fonn of admonishment within an 

unpublished decision. ld. Ultimately, the majority concluded that the 

sparse written Findings of Fact were adequate when coupled with trial 

court's equally sparse oral ruling. ld. 

The dissent disagreed. The Honorable Judge Lavvre.nce-Berrey 

stated that the majority combined insufficient written findings with an 

erroneous ''best interest of the kids" oral finding. Langford Dissent at 1. 

(emphasis in original). Judge LaWrence-Berrey further noted that 'Chapter 

26.19 RCW, which governs setting child support, does not contemplate a 

"best interest ofthe kids [sic]" standard.' Id. 

Dissenting Judge Lawrence-Berrey agreed with the majority's 

. analysis for the presumptive child support obligation which is determined 

by reference to the statute's economic tabl~. ld. He also agreed with the 

majority's analysis that the presumptive child support obligation for an 

obligor parent is determined by multiplying the obligoli parent's 

percentage of total net income by the basic support obligation. HOwever, 

Judge Lawrence-Berrey parted with the majority when it claimed "[t]he 

obligor is the parent with the greater theoretical support obligation." 

:Langford, at 3. Judge Lawrence-Berrey correctly noted that because both 

,parents have equal overnights with their children, there is no "'custodial 

parent'. Langford Dissent, at 2. The judge continued, "[i]n such a scenario, 

it is equally random and enoneous to order the father t01 pay his 

4 
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presumptive payment to the mother as it would be to order the mother to 

pay her presumptive payment to the father. Yet the former is exactly what 

the lower court did." Id. 

Finally Judge Lawrence-Berrey concluded that "fh]ere the 

legislative pUipose of achieving a well-reasoned decision has been 

thwarted not once but tvvice: First, the written findings <rlearly are 

inadequate. The majority concedes this; second, the oral finding applies 

· the wrong legal standard, not the standard set forth in RCW 26.19.075." 

: Langford Dissent at 4. 

E. ARGUMENT 

1. The Court of Aweals decision in Langford is inconsistent with 
decisions of the Suoreme Court. 

Obviously both parents have a duty to support to their children. 

The legislature has declared that the support obligation must b~ equitably 

apportioned between the parents. RCW 26.19.001. This court has held that 

the Child Support statute must be construed to achieve the overall purpose 

of the act. Anderson v Monis, 87 Wn.2d 706, 716, 558 P.2d 1~5 (1976). 

"If altemati've interpretations are possible, the one that best advances the 

overall legislative purpose should be adopted". Id. uDeclaratio~ of policy 

in an act, although without operative force in and of themselves, serve as 

an important guide in determining the intended effect of the operative 

sections." Oliver v Bar-borview Mecf. Ctr., 94 Wash.2d 559, 565, 618 

5 
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P.2d 76 (1980), quoting Hearst Corp. v Hoppe, 90 Wn.2d 123, 128, 580 

P.2d 246 (1978). One of the overriding policies and a standard of the 

statewide child support schedule is that the obligation to support a child 

should be equitably apportioned between the parents of the child. 

Harmon v Depamnent of Social and Health Services, 134 Wn.2d 523 

(1998)(emphasis in original); State ex rei MMG v Graham, ~59 Wn.2d 

' 
623,627, 159 Wn.2d 623 (2007); In reMarriage of Ayyad, 110 Wn.App 

· 462, 467, 38 P.3d 1033 (2002). Another aim of the law is to provide 

uniformity tluoughout the state for calculating support obligatfons. RCW 

: 26.19.001(3); In re Man.iage of Sacco, 114 Wash.2d 1, 3, 784 P.2d 1266 

(1990). The Court of Appeals decision in Langford is inconsistent with 

both. The Langford court ignores its role ensuring the support ol;lligation is 

apportioned equitably, concludes Chad Langford the obligor based on his 

higher income, and ultimately allows a bad result based on scant findings 

. and a mistaken legal standard. 

A. In an equally shared residential custody arr.9llgement, each 
parent is an obligor and obligee by definition. 

The Court of Appeals in Langford stated "[t]he obligm;: parent is 

the parent with the greater theoretical support obligation." 2014 WL 

5307956, p. 3. There is no statutory authority or case law to support such 

conclusion. In fact, just the opposite is true, "placing the entire child 

support obligation on one parent were the residential schedule .is shared 

also would not meet the Legislature's intention of equitably apP,ortioning 

6 
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the child support obligation between both parents". State ex reL M.M.G. 

v Graham, 123 Wash. App. 931, 940, 99 P.3d 1248 (2004) ~eversed on 

other grounds, 159 Wn.2d 623 (2007). Stated differently and affumed by 

the highest court, the entire support burden should not be placed on one 

parent when both parents share residential time with both children. State 

ex reL MMG v Graham, 159 Wn.2d 623, 631, 152 P.3d 1005 (2007) 

(Emphasis added). Yet this is precisely what occurred in Langford since 

Chad Langford was conclusively designated as the sole 'obligor' based on 

· his higher income. As a result of this designation, Chad Langford alone, 

was subject to the court's discretionary ruling on a deviation request 

which, according to Division lll, would necessarily force the entire 

: support obligation on him despite this Court's acknowledgment that such 

occurrence should not be placed on one parent in shared custody 

. situations. Graham, 159 at 623. The Court of Appeals in Langford, 

forgets that Shannon Langford owes a duty to support her children too . 

. The Langfotd court further ignores that the mutual duty to SupPOrt one's 

children must be equitably apportioned between the parents. 

· Consequently, according to Langford, Chad Langford is requil;ed to pay 

71% of the basic support obligation to Shannon Langford and Shannon 

'Langford's basic support obligation of 29% is simply non-existent. Such 

·result is not what the legislature nor this court envisioned. 

7 
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B. Without adequate rmdings of faet, the Court of Appeals 
should not have passed on the ultimate result. 

The Court In re the Marriage of Booth, 114 Wn.2d 772, 791 P.2d 

519 (1990) held that, where specific findings of fact denying a deviation 

are not made, a trial court's oral opinion will be sufficient if it articulates 

the basis for the court's resolution of the issue. ld. at 777. There, the 

. husband requested a support deviation. J,s!. at 773-74. The trial court 

denied the deviation and stated that if it were to grant the deviation, it 

would have to articulate that the combined income of the parties was in 

. excess of what the children needed. ld. at 774. The trial ~owt then 

amended the decree and inserted the following language: 

(1) Under the State Child support guidelines effective July 
1, 1988, this Court has no discretion to make a downward 
adjustment from scheduled support based upon the 
resources available to [wife] by virtue of her second 
marriage, or any of the other circumstances outlined in 
{husband's] affidavit; 
ld. (emphasis in original). Consequently, the husband 

. appealed the denial of his requested support de'Viation. Id. 

Upon review, this court recognized that the trial court made no 

specific findings of fact regarding the husband's reasons in support of the 

. deviation. I d. at 777. However, the court stated that ''upon revxew of the 

·trial cowt's oral opinion and its order amending the decree, we fmd the 

court did consider the reasons given for deviation in [husband's] affidavit 

when it decided not to deviate from the Support Schedule.n Id. Of 

!Particular importance is the language in the amended decree which was 

8 
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emphasized by the Supreme Court. Id. at 774. The trial court's order 

stated that consideration to the parties' resources and the reasons 

articulated by the husband were properly considered by the trial court in 

reaching its determination. Id. at 779. This is the proper method for 

denying or approving a requested support deviation. 

Here, Chad Langford's requested deviation was deniedi despite no 

indication that the trial court considered the resources available to the 

children in each home and no finding that the children would) be denied 

. adequate support if the deviation was granted. The trial court simply 

made a fmding that the deviation requested was denied and opined orally 

that denying the deviation was in the best interests of the chil<h:en. Thus, 

. the case is distinguishable from Booth, where the Supreme CoUljt held that 

"[t]he lack of specific fmdings of fact is not fatal" on review of a deviation 

denial if the oral opinion provides an adequate basis for the trial court's 

resolution of the issue. I d. at 777. There, the oral opinion andl amended 

:order both reflected that the trial court was considering the total amount of 

·resources available to the parties and the availability of such resources to 

the children. I d. at 77 4. 

Conversely, the findings of fact identified in Langford merely state 

that a deviation was denied. CP 78. Wholly absent from the find~gs is any 

basis for Chad Langford's deviation denial. Moreover, the trial CQurt's oral 

ruling failed to provide any additional insight into the court's mind as to 

. 9 
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why the credit was denied, such as ''insufficient funds would ~tesult." See 

RP 25. Along these lines, there was no factual finding that Shannon 

Langford's household would be insufficient whatsoever. Ultiinately, the 

trial court got confused and applied a 'best interest of the kids' standard to 

the child support analysis. Id. While the Court of Appeals in Langford 

candidly admitted that the usual finding in such cases is the 'deviation will 

result in insufficient funds', it stretched exceedingly far to conclude the 

'combination' of the oral ruling and the findings somehow satisfy RCW 

26.19.075(3) for review purposes. Langford, p. 5. Indeed, there was no 

attempt to articulate a basis for' the denial beyond the erroneous best 

interest stand8rd. Certainly the trial court's oral ruling misses the mark in 

: terms of providing an adequate basis for denial, as required by Booth, 

·supra. 

2. The LangfOrd decision is not consistent with other decisions from 
the Court of Apoeals. 
A Court of Appeals Division I case concerning a modification of 

· child support strongly contradicts Langford. See In re Maniage of 

Holmes, 128 Wn.App. 727, 736, 117 P.3d 370 (2005). While ~olmes is 

not a shared residence case, the court's rejection of arguments advanced 

and the reasoning involving which parent is responsible for the transfer 

·payment are highly instructive as no case in Washington detennines which 

parent is the obligor and obligee in a shared residence arrangement. In 

Robnes, the mother challenged termination of child support after the child 

10 
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moved in with his father. Id. The mother argued that the trial court erred 
I 

in terminating the support obligation because the parent with the larger 

income is statutorily presumed to make the child support transfer payment 

Id. She contended that since the father has the larger inco~e, he was 

required to pay. Id. The mother relied on Marriage of Casey, 818 Wn.App. 
' ' 

662, 665, 967 P.Zd 982 (1997) to support her argument tha~ the father 

should pay support despite the father having primary residential custody. 

. There, the cowt stated: 

"RCW 26.09.100(1) requires the trial court, aft~r 
considering "all relevant factors,'' to order either or both 
parents to pay child support in an amount detennined 
under RCW 26.19. The trial court calculates the total 
amount of child support, allocates the basic support 
obligation between the parents "based on each parent1s 
share of the combined monthly net income," RCW 
26.19.080(1), then orders the parent with the greater 
obligation to pay the other a "support transfer payment," 
RCW 26.19.011(9) (emphasis added). !d. 

However, the Hoboes court expressed that the portion o( the abov-e 

·quote from Casey, supra, stating ''[t]he trial court ... then orders the 

·parent with the greater obligation to pay the other a 'support transfer 

payroent' is erroneons. 128 Wn.App. at· 777 (emphasis added). Rather, 

:Holmes held that RCW 26.19.011(9) defines 'support transfer :payment' 

•as "the amount of money the court orders one parent to pay anotller parent 

or custodian for child support after determination of the standard 

calculation and deviations." Id. The court plainly stated that this 

11 
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subsection does not direct which parent is to make the payment. Holmes, 

128 Wn.App. at 737. Indeed, the parent who ultimately receives the 

transfer payment is different from an earlier determination as to which 

parent is properly the obligor and obligee. Blurring such classifications 

. permits fatal flaws in a shared residence arrangement. 

The mother in Holmes further argued that even tlrough both 

parents have support obligations under the statute, RCW 26.10.075(2) 

: requires the court to order each parent "to pay the amount of support 

determined by using the standard calculatiQn." Id, She reasoned that one 

parent or the other will have a greater obligation based upon proportional 

income, making him/her presumptively responsible for the net support 

transfer payment before any consideration of the reasons to deviate. Id. 

Again, the Holmes court disaareed offering the following explanation: 

"RCW 26.19.075 establishes the standards for deviation.s 
from the standard calculation. But unless the court findS 
reasons for a deviation, RCW 26.19.020, not RCW 
26.19.075(2) is to preclude a deviation from being granted 
unless (1) the parties have fully disclosed their resources 
and (2) the court enters specific reasons for the deviation 
Nothing in RCW 26.19.075 requires that each parent 
make a payment to the other or assum.eB that the parent 
with the greater presumptive support obligation will be 
responsible for a net transfer payment Instead, RCW 
26.19.075(2) merely affinns that absent a basis fmi 
deviation each parent will pay the amount of the standard 
calculation to the other, if.that parent is obligated to mak~ 
a transfer payment. Holmes, 128 Wn.App at 737-8~ 
(Emphasis added). 

12 

P. 17 



DEC.22.2014 4:38PM TELQUIST ZIOBRO MCMI NO. 648 

The above reading of RCW 26.19.075 is supported by the child 

support worksheets themselves, which are required by RCW 26.19.050 

and appended to chapter 26.19. The child support worksheets pto'Vide for a 

calculation of the basic respective child support obligations and a 

presumptive transfer payment for each parent Historically, child support 

. payments have been the obligation of the noncustodial parent. Id, 

Nevertheless, it was the province of the superior court to determine which 

. parent would pay child support and how much to be paid. Helmes, 128 

. Wn.App. at 73 8. The historical presumption was reflected in tHe Uniform 

. Child Support Guidelines, wbich were approved in 1982 by the 

·Washington State Association of Superior Court Judges. Id. Under the 

. ASCJ Guidelines, "the support to be paid by the non-custodial parent is 

· that fraction of the scheduled amount in the proportion that th,e parent's 

income bears to the total income of both parents:." Washington State Child 

. Support Commission, Final Report, November 1, 1987, at 6. The 

obligation of the custodial parent was satisfied by providing for the child 

in that parent's home, as evidenced by the fact that the custodial parent 

received a support payment and did not make one. Id. However, these 

guidelines were replaced by the child support guidelines as adopted by the 

Washington Child Support Commission and as subsequently enacted by 

the legislature as chapter 26.19, Yet, such chapter focuses on the method 

13 
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of calculation of child support, DQ! .Q!! which parent would make payment 

to the other. Holmes~ 1287 Wn.App. at 739. (Emphasis added)~ 

Nevertheless, as part of the Parenting Act, the legislature removed 

the concepts of custody and visitation from the dissolution statute, RCW 

26.09. In their place, the legislatw'e imposed the general requirement of a 

parenting plan that establishes a residential schedule, allocates decision 

· making, etc. See RCW 26.09.184(2). RCW 26.09.100(1) asi amended~ 

vested the superior court with authority to "order either or both parents to 

. pay child support in an amount determined Wlder RCW 26.19."'(Emphasis 

added). However, the legislature did not change the historical presumption 

: in practice that the parent with whom the child resided a majority of the 

· time would satisfy the support obligation by providing for the c:'pild while 

: in his or her home and that the other parent would make a child support 

. transfer payment. As the court explained: 

"[i]n those situations [where children reside a majority 
of the time with one parent], the obligor parent is the 
one with whom the children do not reside a majority of 
the time and that parent makes a transfer payment to the 
parent with whom the children primarily reside." State 
ex rei. MMG 'V Graham, 123 Wn.App at 939. 

Of course this presumption is not without exception. The exception 

is created by deviation based upon a fmding that the income of the parent 

with whom the child does not reside a m&gority of the time is insufficient 

to provide for the basic needs of the child. RCW 26.19.075(1)(d). In 

14 
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Holmes, the court found that a large disparity in incomes was immaterial. 

128 Wn.App. at 741. After noting the large disparity in Holmes, the court 

stated that the relevant issue was whether a deviation should lbe granted, 

"[t]his requires a showing of need by [the child) for greater support while 

in his mother's home, not merely a significant difference in the income of 

· the parents.'' ;(g. 

In Langford, the Court of Appeals concluded Chad Langford was 

the obligor simply because his income higher. Langford at 3. Along these 

lines, the parent with the higher income will always be the 'parent with the 

. greater theoretical support obligation'. This conclusion is in direct conflict 

with Holmes as such arguments were advanced and rejected. Whether it is 

a shared residential schedule or majority of time schedule, the analysis is 

I 

the same. If a large disparity in income is immaterial as is under Holmes, 

·Langford inappropriately concluded such income disparity is dispositive 

.for purposes of designating Chad Langford as the obligor. Along these 

lines, Shannon Langford as joint obligor/obligee, must necessarily account 

for her proportional share of child support given the shared custody 

·schedule. 

Further, the Court of Appeals has stated, "[d]evia:ti.on from the 

standard support obligation is appropriate when it would be inequitable 

not to do so." In re Marriage of Polla.rd, 99 Wn. App. 48, 55~ '991 P.2d 

1201 (2000) (emphasis added) (citing In reMarriage of Burc~ 81 Wn. 
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App. 756, 760, 916 P.2d 443 (1996)). In the instant matter, the trial court 

made no findings of fact, made no oral ruling, and made no determination 

at all regarding the equitable or inequitable nature of th~ requested 

deviation. Rather, the trial court merely stated that consideration of what 

was in the best interests of the children was given. RP at 25. This does 

· not comport with published opinions and does not provide Chad Langford 

. with a sufficient basis for the denial of his requested deviation. 

Division I of the Court of Appeals has held that the trial! court may 

exercise its discretion to order a deviation when findings CY! fact and 

conclusions of law assure that the children "are protected with adequate, 

. equitable and predictable child support as required by RCW 26.19.001." 

. In reMarriage of Oakes, 71 Wn. App. 646, 652, 861 P.2d 1065 (1993). 

In Oakes, the trial court denied the deviation and concluded tba.t the 

. support amount was "established to provide a reasonable and; equitable 

· standard of living for each household." I d. 

Thus, when a parent seeks a statutorily permissible deviation, the 

trial court is to consider whether the children are protected with adequate, 

equitable and predictable support. This is especially true in cases such as 

the present where the parties are both gainfully employed and share in 

]oint custody of the children. 

Here, despite the deviation being requested and supported with 

IEWidence at trial, the court provided no meaningful findings of fact or oral 

16 
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rulings as to whether the requested deviation would provide or deny the 

children with adequate, equitable and predictable support. No mention or 

findings regarding the reasonable and equitable standard of living at each 

household was issued upon by the trial court. The trial court's ruling can

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