No. 91167-3

RECEIVED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
Feb 02, 2015, 1:04 pm
BY RONALD R. CARPENTER
/ CLERK

SUPREME COURT FOR THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

RECEIVED BY E-MAIL

SHANNON MARIE LANGFORD Respondent,

٧.

CHAD FRANKLIN LANGFORD PETITIONER.

SHANNON MARIE LANGFORD'S ANSWER TO CHAD FRANKLIN LANGFORD'S PETITION FOR REVIEW

Defoe Pickett Law Office 830 N. Columbia Center Blvd, Ste. A1 Kennewick, WA 99336 (509)734-8787

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

III. REASONS WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE DENIED

- 1. The Court of Appeals decision is consistent with decisions of both the Supreme Court and Court of Appeals.
 - A. The Court of Appeals correctly upheld the trial court's decision to name Mr. Langford as obligor.

RCW 26.09,100(1) requires the trial court, after considering "all relevant factors," to order either or both parents to pay child support in an amount determined under RCW 26.19. The trial court calculates the total amount of child support, allocates the basic support obligation between the parents "based on each parent's share of the combined monthly net income," RCW 26.19.080(1), then orders the parent with the greater

obligation to pay the other a "support transfer payment." RCW 26.19.011(9). Marriage of Casey 88 Wash. App. 662, 665, 967 P.2d 982(1997).

A December 23, 2014 decision out of the Division III Court of appeals reinforces this. In re: Parentage of A.L., 340 P.3d 260(2014) involved shared residential placement and found that the trial court could declare the father the obligor for purposes of making support transfer payments. In its decision, the Court stated that "trial court held authority, under statutory sources as well as recent Washington precedent, to nominate Zasso as the obligor since he accrued the higher income and the mother received TANF benefits for the child, despite shared residential placement." Id at 266.

At trial and on appeal, the respondent argued that Chad Langford earns substantially more than Shannon Langford and has the higher obligation, therefore he is the "obligor" for child support, even with equal time. The Court of Appeals agreed and found that "the obligor is the parent with the greater theoretical support obligation. Here, Mr. Langford is the obligor parent." Langford at 3.

B. The Washington State Supreme Court has held that the statutory child support schedule applies in shared residential placement situations.

The primary case resolving this issue is State ex rel. M.M.G v. Graham, 159, Wn.2d 623, 632, 152, P.3d 1005 (2007); State ex rel. M.M.G. v. Graham, 123 Wn. App. 931, 933, 99 P.3d 1248 (2004), aff'd in part, rev'd in part on other grounds, Graham, 159 Wn.2d 623, abrogated on other grounds, In re Marriage of McCausland, 159 Wn.2d 607, 152 P.3d 1013 (2007).

Graham, was a support modification case. The parties had two children (both over 12) and had equal residential time. Father was originally granted a deviation because of his substantial time with the children and because the reduction "did not leave [mother] with insufficient funds to meet the children's needs." Id., at 628.

The state filed a support modification more than two years later.

Father again requested a deviation and asked the court to apply the Arvey formula (formula when each parent has custody of at least one child Marriage of Arvey 77 Wash.App. at 819, 894 P.2d 1346.). Mother and the State objected to using this formula.

The trial court Commissioner granted the residential credit deviation but refused to apply the **Arvey** formula. **Graham** at 629. Father filed a motion to revise and the Judge reversed and applied the formula. **Id.**, at 630. Mother appealed and the Court of Appeals reversed

yet again and refused to apply the **Arvey** formula. **Id.**, at 631. Mother petitioned for review and the Supreme Court accepted.

Father argued the **Arvey** formula should be applied to equal residential schedules "by analogy." **Id.**, at 633. The Supreme Court cited two reasons for denying his request.

First, in a split residential situation, each parent has residential time with one or more children. If the children are different ages or have different needs, the parents' respective burdens are different and the child support obligation must take those differences into account, a fact the Arvey court acknowledged but did not resolve. Conversely, in shared residential situations, both parents are responsible for the same children and the same needs.

And second, because the statute explicitly gives the trial court discretion to deviate from the basic child support obligation based on the facts of a particular case, a specific formula is neither necessary nor statutorily required to ensure the parents' child support obligation is properly allocated.

The Legislative intent regarding child support is succinctly stated in RCW 26.19.001 (*Italics added*):

"The legislature intends, in establishing a child support schedule, to insure that child support orders are adequate to meet a child's basic needs *and to provide additional child* support commensurate with the parents' income, resources, and standard of living. The legislature also intends that the child support obligation should be equitably apportioned between the parents."

At trial, Chad Langford did not prove a deviation would not result in insufficient resources to Shannon Langford's house, nor that it would be inequitable to order a child support transfer payment consistent with the child support guidelines.

A Division One Court of Appeals decision mirrors the facts contained within this case. In re Marriage of Schnurman, Wn.1d, 316 P.3d 514 (2013). This case affirms that Washington Law and legislature have determined the proper method for calculating child support when parents share equal residential time. A summary of relevant facts are as follows:

The Schnurman case involves parties dissolving a 10 year marriage, wherein a final parenting plan was entered granting shared and equal residential time with the children. The trial court found father's income to be \$6,338, mother's income to be \$3,380.00, and named father as the obligor. Father was ordered to pay the standard transfer amount of \$1,300.00. Father requested a downward deviation and was denied on the basis that the father could not prove having the children half the time would significantly increase his costs to support the children or reduce

wife's expenses for the children. The trial court also found that a downward deviation would result in insufficient funds for the wife's household. Father appealed. Id at 516.

On appeal, father argued that the standard calculation did not apply in shared custody situations like theirs; that only a parent who has the children a majority of the time is entitled to child support; the trial court abused its discretion in awarding mom a transfer payment; Washington Legislature and Courts have determined the proper method for calculating child support in shared residential cases; and requested that the Court consider and equitably apportion the expenses each parent pays. Id at 517.

The Division One Court of Appeals disagreed with the father and upheld the trial court's decision. Their reasoning being that the Washington State Supreme Court, affirming Division One, previously held that the statutory child support scheduled applies in shared residential situations under **State ex rel. M.M.G v. Graham**, 159 Wash.2d 623, 626, 632, 152 P.3d 1005(2007). Additionally, that under RCW 26.19, the Child Support Schedule Statute, the legislature's intent was clear:

"...to ensure child support orders are adequate to meet a child's basic needs and provide adequate child support commensurate with the parent's income, resources and standard of living." RCW 26.19.001. Id at 517.

The Court of Appeals also found that the **Graham** case controlled and determined the process for entering an order of child support in accordance with RCW 26.19.011(1). **Schnurman** at 518. First, the basic child support obligation is set from the table based on parent's combined monthly income and ages. Second, the trial court allocates the child support obligation between the parents based on each parent's share of the combined monthly income. RCW 26.19.080(1). Third, the court determines the presumptive amount of child support owed by the obligor parent to the oblige RCW 26.19.011(8). Fourth, if requested, the court can consider to deviate upwards or downwards from the standard calculation RCW 26.09.011(4)(8). The court has discretion to deviate from standard calculation based on factors like a parent's income and expenses, obligations to children from other relationships, and the residential schedule. If the court considers a deviation based on the residential schedule, specific statutory analysis is required as follows:

"(d) Residential schedule. The court may deviate from the standard calculation if the child spends a significant amount of time with the parent who is obligated to make a support transfer payment. The court may not deviate on that basis if the deviation will result in insufficient funds in the household receiving the support to meet the basic needs of the child or if the child is receiving temporary assistance for needy families. When determining the amount of the deviation, the court shall consider evidence concerning the increased expenses to a parent making support transfer payments resulting from the significant amount of time

spent with that parent and shall consider the decreased expenses, if any, to the party receiving the support resulting from the significant amount of time the child spends with the parent making the support transfer payment." RCW 26.19.075(1)(d) Id at 519.

RCW 26.19.075(1) explicitly states that in using its discretion to deviate from the standard calculation, the court must base their decision on such factors as the *parents' income and expenses*, obligations to children from other relationships, and the children's residential schedule. Id. (*Emphasis added*.)

RCW 26.19.075(1)(d), "[t]he court may deviate from the standard calculation if the child spends a significant amount of time with the parent who is obligated to make a support transfer payment," subject to the terms and conditions below:

The court may not deviate on that basis if the deviation will result in insufficient funds in the household receiving the support to meet the basic needs of the child or if the child is receiving temporary assistance for needy families. When determining the amount of the deviation, the court shall consider evidence concerning the increased expenses to a parent making support transfer payments resulting from the significant amount of time spent with that parent and shall consider the decreased expenses, if any, to the party receiving the support resulting from the significant

amount of time the child spends with the parent making the support transfer payment. (*Emphasis added*). ld.

Deviations remain "the exception to the rule and should be used only where it would be inequitable *not to do so.*" Marriage of Burch, 81 Wn. App. 756 761 (1996) (*Emphasis added*). They should be used if strict application of [the child support guidelines] would result in a significant disparity in the amount of support available for the children in each household. Marriage of Oakes, 71 Wn. App. 646, 652 (1993) (This case was addressing the split custody situation).

The amount of child support rests within the sound discretion of the trial court. Marriage of Fiorto, 112 Wn. App. 657 (2002). If the findings of fact and conclusions of law support a decision to deviate the court may then exercise its discretion to order an appropriate deviation that will assure that both children are protected with adequate, equitable and predictable child support. Oakes, at 652.

There were adequate findings of fact on which the Court of Appeals relied upon.

RCW 26.19.035(2) requires that an order for child support shall be supported by written findings of fact upon which the support determination is based and shall include reasons for any deviation from

the standard calculation and reasons for denial of a party's request for deviation from the standard calculation.

At trial, The Honorable Judge Mendoza provided adequate factual findings, on several occasions. The Final Order of Child Support, signed by Judge Mendoza, explicitly stated that a deviation was denied based on a "large disparity in the parties" income. It is in the best interest of the children for the father to pay the full monthly transfer payment without deviation." (CP 41).

In its decision on Chad Langford's motion for reconsideration,

Judge Mendoza stated:

"I have reviewed my notes and the motions filed by both parties. However, the respondent [Chad Langford] has inadvertently misquoted or taken some of the Court's statements out of context. After said review, the Court is denying Respondent's motion." (CP 90-92)

On appeal, the Court found that the findings satisfied the statutory requirement. "...since we may review the oral ruling in conjunction with the court's finding of fact, the combination satisfies RCW 26.19.075(3) for review purposes." Langford at 5.

IV.CONCLUSION

The arguments presented in the petition for review are without merit. The decision of the Court of Appeals is not in conflict with a

decision from the Supreme Court of another Court of Appeals. The Court of Appeals decision is correct. Accordingly, the petition for review should be denied.